c:'ty of C : S sm
) Lake Worth Lake Worth Beach, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.
—_—— % ?Lsggb 7 North Dixie Highway
' g Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460
/4 561.586.1600
AGENDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
ELECTRIC UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2021 - 6:00 PM

ROLL CALL:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering:

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items)
A. Community Solar Presentation by Katie Chiles Ottenweller

B. An Industry Perspective on Community Solar presented by Brion Fitzgerald and Eric
Misbach of NexAmp

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
A. October 26, 2021

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

A. Change in the Convenience Fee model to include all customer payments made using
the Paymentus Payment Portal

B. Establishing new Electric Utility Rates and Charges to be Effective on either January
1, 2022 or April 1, 2022

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Eighth Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Vantage Services
Consulting LLC

B. Task Order No. 10 with E.C. Fennell, PA., for Distribution System Planning services
for the 6th Avenue Substation Circuits and Southeast Quadrant of the City’'s Electrical
Service Area

C. Agreement for Call Center Support Services with ENCO Utility Services, LLC

D. Second Amendment to Agreement with G&W Electric Company for the purchase of
38kV Reclosers

E. Second Amendment to Agreement with ABB Inc. for the purchase of magnetically
actuated 38kV vacuum circuit breakers

F. Agreement with Trench Limited for the purchase of 138kV Coupling Capacitor Voltage
Transformers




ADJOURNMENT:

The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted
online at: https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that,
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105)



Community Solar

Katie Chiles Ottenweller
Southeast Director
katie@votesolar.org

November 2021

F - N : L\ 3
- r . )
y 4 .‘i

VOTE SOLAR



mailto:katie@votesolar.org

-——wy W aGB W v -aa W --—--..: 9 v -y W'y & W a2 WV vV v &

Energy v

U.S. Utility Solar PPA Prices versus Average Natural Gas Prices. s/MWh

VOTE SOLAR
Levelized Cost of Energy Comparison—Unsubsidized Analysis
Selected renewable energy generation technologies are cost-competitive with conventional generation technologies under certain circumstances
Solar PV-Rooftop Residential $150 _ 3227
Solar PV-Rooftop C&l s7« N ;-
Solar PV-Community el 0 N
Retowable Solar PV-Crystalline Utility Scalé : s31 R 342
L) Solar PV-Thin Film Utility Scalel > $29 - $38
Solar Thermal Tower with Storage s12¢ | 5156
Geothermal sso NG o
Wind s2¢ GG :54 & 5861
Gas Peaking s151 [ s:c
Nuclear & 5290 s12s T si:c
Conventional (6)
Coal sa19 ¢ ses [ ;-
Gas Combined Cycle s200 @544 [ 7 € sss™ & 51270
50 $25 $50 $75 $100 $125 $150 $175 $200 $225 $250 $275
Source: Lazard Levelized Cost ($/MWh)




Americans Want Solar. Overwhelmingly.

VOTE SOLAR

» 89% of Americans favor expanding solar as an energy

source
(2018) Pew Research Center

» Strong bipartisan support for increased use of solar

» 71% of Americans support increasing reliance on renewable

energy
(2018) Pew Research Center

» Interest in community solar soars from 14% to 47% when

people learn about it
(2016) SEPA Report



http://www.pewinternet.org/2018/05/14/majorities-see-government-efforts-to-protect-the-environment-as-insufficient/ps-05-10-18_report-07/
http://www.pewinternet.org/2018/05/14/majorities-see-government-efforts-to-protect-the-environment-as-insufficient/ps-05-10-18_report-07/
about:blank

U.S. Community Solar Nears 1 GW of " 4
Total Capacity Operating Nationwide """

Cumulative U.S. Community
Solar Installed Capacity

©
3
U.S. community solar is growing at a ~
quicker pace than the overall U.S. 2 g
solar deployments < z
§ 3
Driven in large part by policy commitments in w00 50 g
Minnesota and Massachusetts, new deployments ; —’é
of community solar have grown at a rapid pace, 3 3
achieving a five-year compound annual growth § 3
rate of 53% (vs. 26% for all solar). §
Still, community solar represents less than 2% of 2
all operating U.S. solar to date. As we explore -
further, most barriers to community solar stem 0 0
from program design and market matunty rather 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016€ 2017€ 2018E 2019€ 2020€ 2021E

than the inherent model.
B Annual installations (MWdc) w—  Share of Non-Residential PV (%)

Source: GTM Research Wood Mackenzie




Ownership Options \ ¥ 4

VOTE SOLAR

» Third-party owned: A developer owns a project and allows participation on a
voluntary basis. Third-party owned projects are typically only allowed in states
that have created a statewide community solar program.

» Utility-owned: A utility owns a community solar project and allows participation
on a voluntary basis. Utilities are able to create their own community solar
program on a voluntary basis, or can be required to do-so through a statewide
community solar program.

»Community-owned: In a community-owned solar projects, individuals,
nonprofits, and other community-based organizations can come together to own
a community-solar facility.




But Access to On-Site Solar 1s Limited “

VOTE SOLAR

150,000 customer-sited solar
energy systems by the end of
2010

2 million customer-sited solar
energy systems by the end of
2018

36 million to 74 million
residences and businesses
without solar but suitable for
onsite solar

75 million to 113 million
households and businesses
without onsite solar access

Source: GTM Research / SEIA, EIA, U.S. Census




The Solution: Community Solar L 4
VOTE SOLAR
What is community solar? Community solar refers to local solar arrays shared by
iIndividual community members, who receive credits on their electricity bills for their
portion of the power produced.

The Jackson Family

Sunnyside
Elementary School




Community Solar 101

STEP 1:

A community
solar project
generates clean,

solar energy

STEP 2:

Individuals, local
businesses, schools and
others sign up to receive
the energy from a certain

I
number of panels. These
panels can be purchased ' I I m

upfront or participants can TITIT
opt for a 'pay-as-you-go"
solution

VOTE SOLAR

STEP 3: STEP 4:

Community solar Signing up for community
subscribers will solar should provide tangible
receive a credit on economic benefits and

their bill based on savings on your utility bill
the amount of
energy produced by
their community
solar panels




Defining Community Solar -

) ) VOTE SOLAR
) The Typical Community Solar Model
Over the years, many prOJeCtS have .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

been labeled community solar, but we
define community solar as a solar
project with multiple subscribers that
receive on bill benefits directly
attributable to the community solar

project.
» Subscribers receive a credit COMMUNITY SOLAR TIL Iy
. . . . PROVIDER
on their electric bill for their AR Energy and Other Grid N
share in a community solar — Sl B 2 .

.:‘I
« Subscribers must be tied to a
specific solar project




Community Solar Guiding Principles \ 4

VOTE SOLAR

» Develop new solar assets

» EXxpand consumer access

» Offer tangible economic benefits
» Put consumers first

» Promote fair market competition
» Complement existing programs




How do community solar customers pay \Y 4
for their clean energy? VOTE SOLAR

Participants can subscribe to a portion of a local community solar facility and get a share of the electricity that
system produces. There are generally two ways to sign up:

1. Upfront per-panel payment: This model allows participants to pay a one-time fee for panels that make up
part of a larger solar project. In exchange, participants receive all of the electricity produced by their panels (or
share) and see that as a credit on their normal electricity bill.

2. Ongoing “pay-as-you-go” subscription payment: This model eliminates the upfront cost to going solar. It
allows individuals to pay a lower price for the electricity they receive from a community solar facility. The end
result is a percent-reduction in a customers monthly electricity expenditures.

The “pay as you go” subscription option is becoming the dominant model, and as community solar continues to
scale, the product offerings are becoming more and more user friendly -- with the goal of becoming as easy as
ordering a product on amazon, or purchasing Netflix or Direct TV.

Community Solar 101



Community Solar Subscribers Value a Breadth of f—

Financial and Non-Financial Benefits

Average Score to “Rate the Importance of the Following Attributes to
You / Customer Constituencies You Work With”—All Subscriber Segments

Tangible Economic Savings ([ GGG
Predictability of Costs ||| | G
Financing Options || GG
simplicity [ G
Alignment with Values ||| |||GG
Program Administration [ G

Economic Impact or Co-benefits ||| GIN

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

Weighted Importance (1 = Least Important, 5 = Most Important)

Community Solar 101

From a survey of over two dozen
community solar operators and
subscriber organizations, we find that:

Community solar economics are important...
» Subscribers overwhelmingly chose community solar due to financial options and
benefits:
> Over 60% of responses ranked “tangible economic savings” as the most
important factor of a community solar subscription
> The second and third most important factors were, respectively, a
predictable cost of electricity and compelling finance options (e.g., zero-
down leases and pay-as-you-go models)

...but non-financial benefits need to be included

> Simplicity is the highest rated non-financial benefit identified, referencing
an easy-to-subscribe and intuitive process to procure solar energy

> Subscribers also care about who is administering the program, meaning
trust is important. But that can mean local organizations, private
developers or a local utility, depending on the party.

> While subscribers may not universally value economic co-benefits highly
(e.g., workforce development), other stakeholders, such as community
leaders, policymakers and regulators, will.

Source: GTM Research Wood Mackenzie

VOTE SOLAR



Why I1s Community Solar a Preferred -
O pti O n ? VOTE SOLAR

A homeowner may be The roof may be too Some commercial The customer is not
T

eligible for standard
financing solutions

restricted from installing shaded or will need buildings have equipment

solar by their re-roofing in the next few on the roof, obstructing
homeowners association years an installation

Renters may be
prohibited from installing
solar on the property

Creates new local
property tax revenues

Creates local, well-paying
solar jobs

Drives private investment
into a state

The size, type, or
orientation of the roof
may be improper for
on-site solar

A homeowner or A homeowner is An affordable housing
business is concerned planning to move in the property owner cannot
about maintaining their near to mid-future provide on-site solar
rooftop system energy to multiple
individually-metered

tenants

Multi-tenant dwellings or
businesses may not own
their rooftop




Why Choose Community Solar? f—

VOTE SOLAR

Customer Benefits

» Equal Access: Gives ALL consumers equal access to solar energy, regardless of housing
type or income level.

» Tangible Economic Savings: Customers should save money on their electric utility bill,
and receive stable energy bills and predictable energy prices

» Hassle free clean energy: Customers can sign up to participate in a community solar
project without having to worry about on-site contractors, permits, or maintenance.

»  Flexibility: Community solar allows customers to move within the utility territory and still
retain their participation in the community solar project, making it an easy, portable energy
solution.



Why Choose Community Solar? f—

VOTE SOLAR

Soclo-Economic Benefits

»

»

»

»

»

New investments: Economic development strategy that spurs new development and
Impacts local economies.

Job creation: Local workers gain new employment opportunities and in some cases, job
training.

Economies of scale: Larger projects provide a lower cost per watt than other types of
solar projects.

Energy burden: Low-income families, households of color, multifamily and renting
households spend a much larger percentage of their income on energy bills than the
average family.

Community engagement and ownership: Community involvement, ownership and
participation in local solar



Why Choose Community Solar? \V

VOTE SOLAR

Grid and Environmental Benefits

» Environmental goals: Community solar allows multiple people to benefit from clean
energy, helping to expedite the transition away from fossil fuel.

» Local and Resilient Grid Resource: community solar is clean and reliable resource
located directly within communities, with opportunities to pair with community storage
solutions



Community Solar:
BARC Electric
Cooperative

Community Solar 101

16,000,000 kWhs

180 Homes / 25 Businesses
11,000 Metric Tons of CO2 Avoided

BARC Electric Cooperative
Community Solar

$1.3 million project

550 kilowatts

Subscribe up to 25% of your energy needs

3 acres

20 Yec

www.hb




Resources v

VOTE SOLAR

>

\4

Interstate Renewable Energy Council Guiding Principles:

> http://www.irecusa.org/publications/qguiding-principles-for-shared-renewable-
enerqy-programs/

Coalition for Community Solar Access Resource and Policy Decision Matrix:

> http://www.communitysolaraccess.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/CCSA-Policy-
Decision-Matrix-Final-11-15-2016.pdf

Low Income Solar Policy Guide, Community Solar

> http://www.lowincomesolar.org/practices/community-solar/
Shared Renewables HQ

> http://www.sharedrenewables.org/

>

\4

>

\4

>

v

Community Solar 101


http://www.irecusa.org/publications/guiding-principles-for-shared-renewable-energy-programs/
http://www.communitysolaraccess.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/CCSA-Policy-Decision-Matrix-Final-11-15-2016.pdf
http://www.lowincomesolar.org/practices/community-solar/
http://www.sharedrenewables.org/

nexAmpE

NEXAMP.COM

GETTO KNOW US

Revolutionizing the
future of clean energy. -

We're making decarbonlzatmn easy
and accessible for generatf@ns to come.

NEXAMP 2021 |



nexAmpP

GET TO KNOW US

OURMISSION

PROCCESS

COMMUNITY SOLAR

BILLING

ASSET MANAGEEMENT

DEVELOPMENT

THE TEAM




nexAmp

*
%)
* | 0

LOCATIONS

GOUR OFFICES

Nexamp is harnessing positive power and funneling it back into

| Get TO Kn ow U S communities across the country, maximizing our social

and environmental impact daily.

« National company headquartered in Boston

» Vertically integrated solar energy and storage company

« Develop, manage, and maintain community solar farms nationally
» Lead with inclusivity and equity




nexAmp

MISSION Expenenced Wlll Thomas and Qan Leary.ret’urned from active duty_ in the Middle East
with a plan to alleviate America’s dependency on foreign resources.
Problem Solvers

« Founded Nexamp in 2007, with now over 300 employees

* Provide a range of residential and commercial energy solutions

« Ensure equity, accessibility, and transparency through vertically integrated
model




| The Nexamp Way

We are a vertically integrated organization that manages each phase of the project to
ensure total awareness and understanding.

*Operations

*Maintenance

*Finance

*Distribution

*Storage

Acquisition Asset Management
® AN AN AN PY
7 7 7

Construction



Dedicated

Developers

We take pride in catering to everyone. Whether you'd
like to turn your rooftop into revenue or land into a

reliable source of power, Nexamp makes it easy. )
. = %)
* |ndividual landowners %
 Renters %.
0

« Municipalities
« Commercial buildings

QOUR OFFICES




©
N &8
2E ¢£3
S ® 55
el 25
mm.mm
O ©O s 2
05
CSWM
-

)
=

>

o))

)
alis
T o
wn
o @
O ©O
< o
St
o 3
O @
o O
© 8
B =
QL w®©
= c
nt
e 2
m.m
o ®
O O

and are
lar power

ivilege,
ing so
ble to all

not a pr

ight,

is a rig

tted to mak
ble and access

commi
flex

v" No rooftop panels
v" No upfront cost

v" No credit checks

v No long-term contracts

v" No need to own your home
v’ Savings for everyone




COMMUNITY SOLAR

Building trust, one
review at a time.

Thousands of Nexamp community solar
customers are supporting solar in their
local communities. We make it easy for
anyone to tap into clean energy, and we
want to share that opportunity with
communities and businesses across the
country, no matter their background.

Nexamp believes that everyone should
have access to clean energy.

nexAmp

Hear what our customers have to say about us.

“The sign up was easy.
The flexibility is fantastic.”

“‘We really love working with “There’s no maintenance
Nexamp because [it] really is for us. We don’t have to
a win-win scenario and worry about anything.”

that’s what we look for
in a company..”

Trustpilot 3 3 % A




| How it Works

We get solar from 93 million miles away. If
you're eligible, we make it easy to get it
from a solar farm near you.

NexXAMP

You and your neighbors
subscribe to a share of one of
our solar farms in your state.

The solar farm feeds clean You purchase these energy
power into your community’s credits at a discount, reducing
electric grid while earning your electricity costs,

energy credits for you.




That's it. Easy, right?

No catch. No hidden fees. Just a smart
way to reduce your electric bills and do
right by your home and community.



COMMUNITY SOLAR
BILLING NnexXAMP

Your current bill Your utility bill with Nexamp Your new Nexamp bill

y

Your Power Bill +

Nexamp Bill ‘ ‘

+

11




ITY SOLAR

Sample Nexamp
Invoice

Nexarmp, Ine anOiCE

v 101 Summer Stregt R
nexAmp = eso

Bostan, MA 02110 08/16/2017

Current Invoice Total: $6702 Previous Account Balance: $0.00 Total Account Balance: $67.02

A TOTAL DUE
Bill To: $67.02
Jane Doe

123 Street Rd DUE DATE
Salisbury, MD 21804 09/16/2017

Utility Production Period Utility Account Solar Discount Amount

Info Energy on Solar Due
Credit Credits

Delmarva 6/5/2017 to 04033-12345 $74.47 10% $67.02
Power 7/5/2017 44 Address Lane
Salisbury, MD

Current Invoice Total $67.02
Lifetime Savings

@ % || L8 £

$305 0% 5295 IOOOOQ
Value of Credits Savings €O, Emi
Purchased to Date Rate loM ' Saved MW

PAY ONUINE: visit www.nexamp com/logn  MAIL A CHECK: 101 Summer St 2nd Floor, Boston MA 02110
QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR BILL? contact ar(nexamp com

FAQs

1have 10 creding on my wtility B8, What do | dot

o theve are Crodits mssinsg froen your Uity DIl your Wity D was Bty Qeneratied Defiore The Uity was abdie 10 Barmfer the codits. Cuntomens Nave two
options: 1 check your online LIty sctount 50 confierm Tt Bhe Cedits have been Sarnferred 10 your account and sppied %0 your Salance or 2) watt for your
et ity il 10 condem the Sansier of wdits. Please Seed free 10 Nobd OF 0n payeng pour Nesamg nwoice untl you have confemed the transler of Oedey 10
YOUr SOCOUNE < we G0 NOL mird Our Qusiorrer s Dy for Cradits they have not soen

Dot B4 (Nange avy relatansdip with the utiity®

NOt ot ok the Wity Gelvery claCicly 10 pour Rorne o sl and will Continue 10 servioe ol eQuErrent and sescive o power Oulages. Nesamp wil handie o8
commumcation with your wtiity segueding your ervoliment I community solae ¥ $here aoe any remaining charge after the Neenp cedits e appied % your
Wiy Dl you are responeitile 1o panng That amownt 35 the Welity

When i it impor 1o contact
1 2t any poinrt you Intend 15 Move of change the detals of your Wty Acount, we need 10 hea Bom you 2 500N a6 possbie’ We have minkmal visbility mto
yOur Uty 000U and thevefore we rely On The Cusionmey 10 Iioem L OF arty SnEendingg ChanQes TR meght Serugt your (ediing service.

NexXAMP




NeXAMP

Community
Approved

We’re a long-term partner that’s focused on
making your community stronger.

Land is acquired and assessed

Construction of solar farm begins

« Solar Power World Top Solar Contractors
9 Years Running

« Transparent ally in every phase

. e i Our engineers plan for the
« Pursuing opportunities in low-and-moderate optimal solar farm design

communities
» Friendly with local utilities

Constant updates given to
customers during construction

Project is connected to the grid

Customers begin to see benefits, with
added environmental benefits such as our
solar grazing program




NexXAMP

| Asset Management

Scptrmber Equipment Outage Loss by Ske l.

We provide resiliency to the grid and can optimize the * Involved in every phase
performance of your solar facilities. Our goal is to increase + Provide energy insights
efficiency and cut costs for commercial customers. » Offering a long-term partnership




DEVELOPMENT

Building trust, one
project at a time.

We have been meeting the demand for
more clean energy for close to two

decades, achieving growth across all
business units.

Hear what our customers have to say about us.

'CAN
BILLIONAIRES
LIKE BEZ0S
AND BUFFETT
DISRUPT
HEALTHCARE?

“‘Community solar at this scale allows Walmart to play a
direct role in spurring economic development in the
communities we serve and reinforces our goal to spark
collective climate action,”

Mark Vanderhelm

Vice President, Energy and Facilities Management at Walmart”

nexAmpP




Corporate Energy
Solutions

From local governments and colleges
to the world'’s largest retailers, Nexamp
makes the process of reducing energy
costs and achieving sustainability

objectives easy for commercial users of
all sizes

NeXAMP




NnexXAMm

The
Team

Every day we strive to be fair and inclusive,
embracing diversity at every turn. It's our mission to
be the change we wish to see in the greater
renewable energy space.

« 200% employee growth in the last 3 years

« 80% diversity at C-Suite level

« Named Boston Business Journal Best Places to
Work

« Trust Pilot Excellent, BBB A+ rating

« Solar Power World: Top Solar Developer




BY

s Achieving growth across all business units.

nexAampP
¢
Community Solar

a growing customer base of: 12 5 0 /o

average annual savings
per community solar customer

1,700°

Q acres of solar farms

0350

gigawatt hours

being produced on all
Nexamp farms

18




COMMITMENTS

nexAmp

Our commitment to our environment
and introducing sustainable practices

has no boundaries.

We are committed to:

Offering sheep grazing on 28 of our
projects to progressively improve the
land by fostering a lower emissions
impact on clean energy maintenance.

Featuring 10+ sites that are National
Wildlife Habitats

Being carbon neutral by 2022, with our
supply chain carbon neutral by 2030.

Recycling all solar panels as they are
decommissioned by 2022.

Transitioning our entire fleet to all
electric by 2025.

Piloting programs to deliver zero
construction waste to landfills in the
near future.

Delivering on sustainable land use
while following local, state and federal
requirements.

Ensuring safe conditions, ethical
treatment and fair labor practices
throughout our business and global
supply chain.

Creating partnership opportunities for
education and technical experience in
our host communities.

Native pollinator vegetation on select
sites.




NnexAMP

i

P

| \\\\\
I

!




NnexAMP

v SF

sma s s
= = = = s
Z,gg%«g%?%f ;ﬁ%égﬁ

AT 7
S S el
T &gzg’/»;u. 22 /énﬂ:z', Z
= e Z G s
o e At 2
i .?;,g:;z,.,g.:-;‘;gg‘;.- %é’f.zgl’zg*}"&?a =
< 2

e e ~
/ e Ao S
e &
'co‘::i%z#o"l

= e T s i
. - 4
2

& .l'b' =/
; ”‘I 2 77 lz'ol
A




74
NG

T

-




NexXAMPE



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
ELECTRICUTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2021 - 6:00 PM

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:10 PM in the City
Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

ROLL CALL: (0:09) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and
Commissioners Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes. Also present were Interim City
Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.
Commissioner Sarah Malega was absent.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:34) led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes.

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: (0:54)

New Business D, First Amendment to Task Order No. 9 with E.C. Fennell, PA., for additional
engineering design services for 6th Avenue Substation PB&Z Package, was added to the
agenda. New Business A, Resolution Neo. 74-2021 — establishing the new Electric Utility Rates
and Charges effective April 1, 2022 was deleted from the agenda.

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the
agenda as amended.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners McVoy
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT
AGENDA:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (19:42)

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the
following minutes:

A. September 28, 2021

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners McVoy
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items)

There were no Consent Agenda items on the agenda.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:




Pg. 2, Electric Utility Meeting, October 26, 2021

Action:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

There were no Public Hearings on the agenda.
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

There were no Unfinished Business items on the agenda.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. (deleted) Resolution No. 74-2021 — establishing the new Electric Utility Rates and Charges

effective April 1, 2022 (2:21)
City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 74-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES, AND REGULATIONS FOR ALL
ELECTRICITY SOLD BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA FOR
USE OF ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM; REPEALING ALL
RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

. (public comments were read, then the item was tabled) Resolution No. 75-2021 --

establishing an In Community Selar Program (35:30)
City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution.
RESOLUTION NO. 75-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,

DIRECTING ITS MUNICIPALLY OWNED UTILITY TO IMPLEMENT AN “IN
COMMUNITY SOLAR PROGRAM”; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Consensus for Commissioner McVoy to bring a presentation on Community Solar Programs
to the next Electric Utility Commission Meeting on November 30, 2021.

Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to table
Resolution No. 75-2021 -- establishing an In Community Solar Program to the next Electric
Utility Commission Meeting on November 30, 2021.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioner Stokes.
NAYS: Commissioner McVoy. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.

C. Resolution No. 76-2021 -- requesting development of an energy conservation and energy

efficiency program (41:33)
City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 76-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
DIRECTING ITS ELECTRIC UTILITY ADVISORY BOARD TO DEVELOP AN
ENERGY CONSERVATION PROGRAM FOR ITS ELECTRIC UTILITY; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve



Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Pg. 3, Electric Utility Meeting, October 26, 2021

Resolution No. 76-2021 -- requesting development of an energy conservation and energy
efficiency program.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners McVoy
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.

D. (added) First Amendment to Task Order No. 9 with E.C. Fennell, PA., for additional
engineering design services for 6th Avenue Substation PB&Z Package (1:14:17)

Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve
the First Amendment to Task Order No. 9 with E.C. Fennell, PA., for additional engineering
design services for 6th Avenue Substation PB&Z Package.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinsonand Commissioners McVoy
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.

ADJOURNMENT: (1:15:03)

Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to adjourn the
meeting at 7:25 PM.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners McVoy
and Stokes. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.

Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa/Ann Coyne, City Clerk

Minutes Approved: November 30, 2021

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube.



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
ELECTRIC UTILITY MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 30, 2021

TITLE:

Change in the Convenience Fee model to include all customer payments made using the
Paymentus Payment Portal

SUMMARY:

On June 29th, 2021, Amendment #2 to the contract with Paymentus Corporation was approved
by the City Commission in order to change the responsibility for payment of fees from an
Absorbed Fee Model (under which fees are paid by the City) to a Convenience Fee Model (under
which fees are paid by the customer). The staff report provided to the City Commission omitted
listing all payment methods (types) that would incur a convenience fee and instead listed only
credit and debit cards even though Amendment #2 to the contract did specify under Schedule
“A” that all payment methods (types) would be affected.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City's Utility Customer Service department utilizes Paymentus Corporation ("Paymentus")
for processing of electronic bill payments for City utility services under a Master Services
Agreement previously negotiated and dated September 4th, 2018. Services provided by the
City and paid for in this manner by Customers include utility services such as electric, water,
sewer, and incidental refuse charges.

On June 29th, 2021 Amendment #2 to the contract with Paymentus Corporation was approved
changing the fee structure from an Absorbed Fee Model to a Convenience Fee Model (the
"Amendment"). Under the previous Absorbed Fee model, the City absorbs the transaction fees
incurred when City's utility customer pay their utility bills online using the Paymentus Online
Payment Portal. Under the approved Amendment, a convenience fee of $3.75 per $500.00
transaction will be charged by Paymentus directly to the customer when making a payment
using any of the payment methods found on the portal including but not limited to Credit Card,
Debit Card, E-Check, PayPal, Amazon Pay, Venmo and all other future offerings introduced by
the vendor. A Convenience Fee model is used by other local electric and gas utilities as well as
Palm Beach County.

Customers still have options to pay their Lake Worth Beach utility bills without incurring the
convenience fee such as: mailing a check; using night depository drop box for check or money
orders; or by enrolling in City’s ACH Auto Draft. In addition, customers who enroll in ACH Auto
Draft and elect paperless billing are eligible to receive a one-time $25.00 credit on their utility
bill.

And customers desirous of paying with cash are still be able to do so at any CVS, 7-Eleven,
Family Dollar, and soon Walmart retail locations nationwide for a fee of $1.99 per $1,000
transaction.



MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the change in the Convenience Fee model to include all customer
payments made using the Paymentus Payment Portal.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis - N/A
Payment Method Analysis

Payment Staff Report June 29,2021
Second Amendment

Master Service Agreement



Period Start: 2021-08-01
Period End: 2021-08-31

Paymentus

# Count of % of $ Amount of % of | Absorbed| Absorbed
Payment Method Transactions| Count Transactions Amount | Fee Price Fee Char,
ges
CREDIT/DEBIT CARDS:
Debit Card - VISA 7582 41% $1,653,036 36% $1.68 $12,738
Credit Card - VISA 2960 16% $752,889 16% $1.68 $4,973
Debit Card - MasterCard 1777 10% $371,024, 8% $1.68 $2,985
Credit Card - MasterCard 1153 6% $324,452 7% $1.68 $1,937
Sub-Total Credit/Debit Cards: 13,472 73% $3,101,401 67% $22,633
E-Check (Electronic Checking/Savings):
E-Check - Checking Account| 4340 24% $1,406,099 30% @ $0.45 $1,953
E-Check - Savings Account 46 0% $7,105| 0% $0.45 S21
Sub-Total E-Check: 4,386 24% $1,413,204| 30% $1,974
Advanced Payment Methods:
PayPal Credit 349 2% $90,497 2% $1.68 S586
Credit Card - Discover 164 1% $29,571 1% $1.68 $276
Amazon Pay 40 0% $10,153) 0% $1.68 S67
Venmo 20 0% $4,832] 0% $1.68 S34
PayPal Credit 20 0% $4,493| 0% $1.68 S34
Sub-Total Advanced Payment Methods: 593 3% $139,547 3% $996
SUB-TOTAL: 18451  100% $4,654,152 100% $25,603
Reward Credit Cards (1126*%*) $485,622 2.65% $12,869
SUB-TOTAL (including Reward Card Charges): 18,451 | $5,139,774 $38,472
Chargebacks / Returns 66 -$28,490 $5.95 $393
GRAND TOTAL INVOICE:‘ ‘ $38,865‘

**NOTE: 1126 Reward Cards are already included in the Credit Card Total Count above



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
ELECTRIC UTILITY MEETING

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2021

TITLE:
Payment of Credit and Debit Card Fees associated with customer payment of utility bills

SUMMARY:

Amendment #2 to contract with Paymentus Corporation to change responsibility for payment
of credit card and debit card fees from an Absorbed Fee Model (under which fees are paid by
the City) to a Convenience Fee Model (under which fees are paid by the customer).

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City’s Utility Customer Service department utilizes Paymentus Corporation (“Paymentus’)
for processing of electronic bill payments for City utility services under a Master Services
Agreement previously negotiated and dated September 4th, 2018. Services provided by the
City and paid for in this manner by Customers include ut|I|ty services such as electric, water,
sewer, and incidental refuse charges.

The City is considering amending the current agreement with Paymentus to change from an
Absorbed Fee Model to a Convenience Fee Model (the “Amendment”). Under the current
Absorbed Fee model, the City absorbs the transaction fees incurred when City’s utility customer
pay their utility bills using a credit or debit card. Under the proposed Amendment, a nominal
convenience fee of $3,75 per $500.00 transaction will be charged by Paymentus directly to the
customer when paying by credit or debit card. By comparison, customer’'s paying with cash pay
a convenience fee of $1.99 per transaction. Under the proposed model the City will not collect

" the convenience fee, rather the«fee will be collected directly by Paymentus from the customer

at the time of the transaction-and the full amount of the customer's payment towards their utility
bill W|II be deposited into the City’s bank account nightly.

The expense to the City under the current policy of absorbing credit card fees is increasing
steadlly as rewards cards grow in popularity. Currently the City is absorbing the credit and debit

- card fees for all utility bill payments-at an estimated cost to the City of approximately $456,000

‘for FY2021. These fees are subsequently allocated to the City’s utility departments as an
operating expense, thereby placing upward pressure on rates for all City utilities customers.
After surveying other municipalities in the state of Florida, it was found that approximately 75%
of the municipalities surveyed utilize a Convenience Fee model when customers choose to pay
their utility bill with a credit or debit card, as do investor owned electric and natural gas utilities,
Palm Beach County, and other Lake Worth Beach City departments for their respective services.

Under the proposed Convenience Fee model all credit and debit cards would be accepted.
Under our current Absorbed fee model the City has restricted the use of credit cards to disallow
certain card(s) which charge exorbitant transaction fees.



If the Amendment is approved City, Staff and Paymentus will coordinate efforts to implement
the conversion to a Convenience Fee model. It is anticipated that the conversion will be effective

for the new fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021.

MOTION:
Move to approve/disapprove payment of Credit and Debit Card Fees associated with customer
payment of utility bills.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis - N/A
Amendment No.2



LULUDIYI CHVEIVPE U, £M4AUDUI-4I T 1=41 190 IV "DDY34 VI UJ0o4 C_2 316_Am2

6/29/21 RM
AMENDMENT NO. 2 NB-A
TO MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 4, 2018

This Amendment No. 2 (“Amendment No. 2”) amends the Master Services Agreement effective as of September 4, 2018
(“Effective Date”) which was modified by Amending Agreement 1 dated November 20, 2018 (collectively the “Agreement”)
between City of Lake Worth Beach (“Client”) with a principal place of business located 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth
Beach, FL 33460 and Paymentus Corporation, a State of Delaware Corporation with a principal place of business at 13024
Ballantyne Corporate Parkway, Suite 400, Charlotte, North Carolina 28277 (“Paymentus”). Customer and Paymentus are
also referred to as “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” This Amendment No. 2 is effective at the time of the last to
sign of the Parties.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Customer and Paymentus entered into the Agreement for electronic bill payment services;

The Parties currently desire to amend the Agreement to replace Schedule A of the Master Services Agreement to
change the fee model from an Absorbed Fee Model (“Customer Pay”) to a Convenience Fee Model (“User Pay”).

AGREEMENT

In consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Customer and Paymentus agree as follows:

1. Amendment. The Agreement is hereby amended as of the Effective Date of this Amendment No. 2 as follows:

1.1 The existing Schedule A (Paymentus Service Fee Schedule) of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the
new Schedule A attached.

“iN

Miscellaneous:

2.1 This Amendment No. 2 is binding and inures to the benefit of the Parties and their respective succéssors and
assigns.

2.2 All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not modified by this Amendment No. 2 remain in full force and
effect.

Page 10of3
CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY
Paymentus legal | Revised 6.10.20



LULUDIYII CHVEIUPE I, LM 4AUDUI-4T T 1741 1970 I/ ~DDOY4U/VUIrL/yo4

2.3 This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

3. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to be executed by their duly

authorized representatives.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

ay: /R

PAYMENTUS SORPORATJON
/ /i

- . 7 = ’-.*£7‘" - T
/ el i
By: /Q_' r'}f'z(,// T

Printed Name: Betty Resch

Print{edﬂa/ me: David Shapiro

Title: Mayor

Title: SVP

Date: 8/20/2021

Date: August 4, 2021

ATTEST:
By: 2
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

By: UMSﬁq QAM

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY
Paymentus legal | Revised 6.10.20

APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL
SUFFICIENCY

oy Brua Miller

Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director

Page 2 of 3



LUCuUoIyll Eliveiupe L. £ 4AUDUI-4I T 1=4{ 1 9-0 I { ~-DDOI4LUIN LI04

Paymentus

SCHEDULE A — PAYMENTUS FEE SCHEDULE

TO THE MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN [CLIENT] AND PAYMENTUS

The Services will initially consist of those indicated by a check box on the following table. The Paymentus Fee will be as
specified below, and will be paid by the Client, unless designated as a User paid fee.

Check to Channels Advanced Services | Payment Methods & Paymentus | Check if
Select the Channels Fee User Paid
Channel Fee
E Instant Payment Ebill Presentment All payment channels and $3.75 E

Network ™ and Customer methods offered under IPN

Engagement such as PayPal, Venmo,
PayPal Credit, Amazon Pay

x Utility Ebill Presentment Credit, Debit, e-Check/ACH | $3.75 X

Direct Payments and Customer

(Web, IVR, Engagement

Recurring)

Utility Ebill Presentment Credit, Debit $1.68

Direct Payments and Customer

(Agent Assisted) Engagement
4 Utility Ebill Presentment e-Check/ACH $0.65

Direct Payments and Customer

(Agent Assisted) Engagement

Utility Ebill Presentment Credit, Debit 2.65%

Direct Payments and Customer

(Agent Assisted- Engagement

Non-Qualified)
g Non-Utility Ebill Presentment Credit, Debit, e-Check/ACH | 2.656% E

(Web, IVR, and Customer

Recurring, Agent Engagement

Assisted)

Note: Average Bill Amount: $189.00. Maximum Amount per Utility Payment is $500.00. Multiple payments may be made.

Maximum Amount per Non-Utility payment is $900.00

Chargebacks and returned checks will be billed at $5.95 per item.

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY
Paymentus legal | Revised 6.10.20

Page 3 of 3



Paymentus

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT

Client: | City of Lake Worth
Client Address: | 414 Lake Avenue Lake Worth, FL 33460
Contact for Notices to Client: | Franco Bellitto, Customer Service Manager

Estimated Yearly Bills / Invoices: | 324,000

This Master Services Agreement (“Master Agreement”) is entered into as of the Effective Date below, by and
between the Client (“Client”) identified above and Paymentus Corporation, a Delaware Corporation
(“Paymentus”).

WHEREAS Paymentus provides electronic bill payment services to utilities, municipalities, insurance and other
businesses; and

WHEREAS the City of Lewisville, Texas, competitively solicited electronic bill payment options services under
Solicitation No. 17.06-A; and

WHEREAS the City of Lewisville, Texas, awarded Solicitation No. 17.06-A to Paymentus, which submitted a
proposal in response to said Solicitation; and

WHEREAS the Client desires to piggy-back Solicitation No. 17.06-A; and,

WHEREAS Paymentus desires to provide and the Client desires to receive those certain services under the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby covenant and agree as
follows. This Agreement consists of this signature page, General Terms and Conditions, and the attachments
(“Attachments”) with schedules (“Schedules”) listed below:

Schedule A: Paymentus Service Fee Schedule

Schedule B: Paymentus Service Fee Schedule, Enterprise Communications Manager (Optional)
Schedule C: Paymentus Provisioning of Counter Payment Hardware (Optional)

Schedule D: Paymentus E-Bill Presentment (Optional)

Schedule E: PayNearMe Integrated Services

Schedule F: Paymentus Provisioning of Additional Software from Superion (Optional)

This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties hereto with respect to its subject matter
and supersedes all other written or oral agreements heretofore made by or on behalf of Paymentus or Client with
respect to the subject matter hereof and may be changed only by agreements in writing signed by the authorized
representatives of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized
representatives.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed Page 1 of 13
Confidential & Proprietary 100205



Paymentus

Client: CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA Paymentus:

By: By: .

\.J

Name: Name: _Jerry Portocalis
Title: Title: __Senior Vice President
Date: Date: September 4, 2018
Attest:

By:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

By:
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed Page 2 of 13
Confidential & Proprietary 100205



Paymentus

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 Definitions:

For the purposes of this Agreement, the
following terms and words shall have the meaning
ascribed to them, unless the context clearly indicates
otherwise.

11 “‘Agreement “or “Contract” shall refer to this
Agreement, as amended from time to time, which
shall constitute an authorization for the term of this
contract for Paymentus to be the exclusive provider
of services, stated herein, to the Client

1.2 “User” shall mean the users of the Client’s
services
1.3 “Effective Date” shall be the last date upon

which the parties signed this Agreement. The
Agreement will not be effective against any party until
the said date

1.4 “Launch Date” shall be the date on which
Client launches this service to the Users

15 ‘Payment” shall mean Users to make
payments for Client’s identified utility services or
Client’s identified utility bills

1.6 “Payment Amount” shall mean the bill
amount User wants to pay to the Client.

1.7 “Non-consumer Cards” shall mean credit
cards which are issued for business use. These high-
cost cards may include corporate cards, purchase
cards, business cards, travel and entertainment
cards.

1.8 “Services” shall only include the
performance of the Services outlined in section 2 of
this Agreement

1.9 “Paymentus Authorized Processor” shall
mean a Paymentus authorized merchant account
provider and payment processing gateway

1.10 “Average Bill Amount” shall mean the total
amount of Payments collected through Paymentus
system in a given month divided by the number of the
Payments for the same month.

2 Description of Services to be performed

21 Scope of Services

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

Paymentus shall provide Users the
opportunity to make Payments by Visa, MasterCard,
Discover, E-check and other payment methods as
deemed necessary by Paymentus. Payments may be
made by Interactive Telephone Voice Response
System (“IVR”) or secure Internet interface provided
at the Paymentus Corporation’s web site or other
websites part of Paymentus’ Instant Payment
Network (“WebSites”), collectively referred to as the
(“System” or “Platform”).

2.2 Professionalism

Paymentus shall perform in a professional
manner all Services required to be performed under
this Agreement.

3 Compensation
3.1 No Cost Installation

Paymentus will charge no fees related to the
initial setup and personalization of its standard
service for both Web and IVR interfaces.

3.2 Paymentus Service Fee

For each payment, Paymentus will charge a
Paymentus Service Fee as per Schedule A
(hereinafter called “Paymentus Service Fee”).

For each payment, the Paymentus Service
Fee collected will be used to pay the corresponding
Credit Card transaction fees or transaction fees
associated with Debit Cards or eChecks (hereinafter
called “Transaction Fees”) except for the return items
(eCheck returns or Credit/Debit Card chargebacks).

A schedule of Paymentus Service Fee is
attached hereto as Schedule A. The Paymentus
Service Fee is based on the Average Bill Amount,
current payment method mix (credit vs debit vs e-
check) and on the assumption that the total number
of payments and the total Payment Amount collected
each month from the use of non-consumer cards
shall be under 5% of the total per month (“Fee
Assumptions”). Client shall be billed an additional
Paymentus Service Fees based on the rate of 3.5%
of the Payment Amount for any excess amount if the
Fee Assumptions vary by more than 5%. Paymentus
can amend this schedule upon thirty (30) days’ prior
written notice to

Page 3 of 13
100205



Paymentus

the Client, if such change is required due to changes
in the Visa and MasterCard regulations or changes
in Credit Card fees or changes in the Average Bill
Amount or changes in Fee Assumptions.

4 Payment Processing

4.1 Integration with Client’s Billing System

At no cost to Client, Paymentus will develop
one (1) file format interface with Client’s billing system
using Client’s existing text file format currently used
to post payments to Client’s billing system. Client will
be responsible to provide Paymentus with the one file
format specification and will fully cooperate with
Paymentus during the development of the said
interface. If Client chooses to create an automated file
integration process to download the posting file, due
to Paymentus security requirements, Client will use
Paymentus specified integration process. Paymentus
platform is an independent full service fully hosted
platform per PCI-DSS requirements for a fully hosted
solution. As such, Paymentus platform does and can
function independent of any billing system integration.
A payment posting file can be emailed or downloaded
from Paymentus Agent Dashboard. If Client chooses
to have Paymentus platform integrated with its billing
system, Paymentus offers two options:

0) Paymentus standard integration
specification that Client can use to integrate its billing
systems with Paymentus platform (“Standard
Integration”); (or)

(i) Paymentus to either customize or
configure its platform to integrate with Client using file
specification or APIs supported by Client’s billing
system (“Client Specific Integration”)

If Client chooses Standard Integration,
Paymentus agrees to fully cooperate with Client and
provide its specification to Client. Paymentus also
agrees to participate in meetings with Client's
software vendor to provide any information or
clarifications needed to understand Standard
Integration. Time is of the essence and Paymentus
agrees to provide all integration/interface
specifications within 30 days from the Effective Date.
Client will take commercially reasonable steps to
develop the integration within 60 days from the date
on which Client has received all integration
specifications from Paymentus. Parties agree that if
Client does not cooperate fully, it can lead to
Paymentus being unable to perform its duties to
deliver the integration in time.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

If Client chooses Client Specific Integration,
Paymentus agrees to develop such integration at no
cost to Client, provided however, Client agrees to fully
cooperate with Paymentus and cause its software
vendors to fully cooperate with Paymentus. Client
agrees to provide all specification required for Client
specific integration. Client further agrees to
participate in testing with Paymentus and if needed,
cause its billing software vendors to participate in
testing. Time is of the essence and Client agrees to
provide or make available all integration/interface
specifications within 30 days from the Effective Date.
Paymentus will take commercially reasonable steps
to develop the integration within 60 days from the date
on which Paymentus has received all the integration
specifications from Client or its vendors. Parties
agree that if Client does not cooperate fully or is
unable to cause its software vendors to cooperate
fully with Paymentus, it can lead to Paymentus being
unable to perform its duties to deliver the integration
in time.

Based on Client’s use of Paymentus platform
and respective modules selected under this
Agreement, Paymentus will require the following
integration points:

1. For one-time Payment Module:

a. Customer Information — Text File or Real-

time

b. Payment Posting — Text File or Real-time
2. For Recurring Payment Module

a. TextFile
3. For E-billing Module

a. Billing Data - Text File or Real-time link to

billing data
4. For Outbound Notification

a. Audience File — Text File for customer

engagement messages

Each of these can be based on Standard
Integration or Client Specific Integration.

4.2 PCI Compliance

For PCI Compliance, Client has two options
for using Paymentus platform:

0] Paymentus Fully Hosted Solution; or
(ii) Any other configuration

To substantially reduce or eliminate any PCI
compliance risks and to render all Client systems out
of scope from PCI compliance requirements, Client
agrees to use Paymentus’ fully hosted service where
Paymentus uses its own platform to capture
Payments and to manage the entire (end to end) user
experience from all channels for Payment

Page 4 of 13
100205



Paymentus

acceptance: Web, Mobile, IVR, POS devices (per
Paymentus recommended  setup), recurring
payments, Ebill Presentment (“Paymentus Fully
Hosted Solution”). If Client chooses any other
integration such as third party web pages integrated
with Paymentus APIs, third party gateway pages, or
its own IVR systems or POS solution not
recommended by Paymentus, or a cashiering module
from third party, Client expressly agrees that Client
shall not be exempt from PCI requirements and shall
be liable for any data breaches occurring on its own
systems as Client’'s recognizes that Client systems
are participating in the transactions and are in scope
for PCl compliance. Under such circumstances,
Paymentus shall not be responsible for any PCI
obligations outside of Paymentus own platform and
Paymentus expressly disclaims any PCI or security
obligations related to Client systems or any third party
systems that participate in the payment transactions
that are outside of Paymentus Platform.

Paymentus highly recommends that Client
uses Paymentus Fully Hosted Solution to
substantially reduce its PCl compliance and data
breach risks.

If Client chooses to use any other option
other than Paymentus Fully Hosted Solution, Client
agrees and warrants that Client shall remain PCI
compliant throughout the term of this Agreement. For
clarity, just because Client uses PCI compliant
applications such as its billing software, it does not
eliminate the need for Client to be PCI compliant. Per
PCI requirements, if a party’s systems participate in
processing, or accepting or storing card transactions,
such party is required to be PCI compliant as the
systems are in scope.

4.3 Explicit User Confirmation

Paymentus shall confirm the dollar amount of
all Payments to be charged to a Card and
electronically obtain the User approval of such
charges prior to initiating Card authorizations
transaction. Paymentus will provide User with
electronic confirmation of all transactions.

4.4 Merchant Account

Paymentus will arrange for the Client to have
a merchant account with the Paymentus Authorized
Processor for processing and settlement of the credit
card transactions.

4.5 Card Authorization

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

For authorization purposes, Paymentus will
electronically transmit all Card transactions to the
appropriate card associations in real time as the
transactions occur.

4.6 Settlement

Paymentus together with its authorized Card
processor shall forward the payment transactions to
the appropriate card organizations for settlement
directly to the Client's depository bank account
previously designated by the Client (hereinafter the
“Client Bank Account”).

Paymentus will debit the Paymentus Service Fees
from Client’s account on a monthly basis.

Paymentus together with Paymentus Authorized
Processor will continuously review its settlement and
direct debit processes for its simplicity and
efficiencies. Client and Paymentus agree to fully co-
operate with each other if Paymentus were to change
its settlement and invoicing processes.

5 : Lconditi f Servi

5.1 Service Reports

Paymentus shall provide Client with reports
summarizing use of the Services by Users for a given
reporting period.

5.2 User Adoption Communication by Client

Client will make Paymentus’ Services
available to its residential and commercial Clients by
different means of Client communication including a)
through bills, invoices and other notices; b) by
providing IVR and Web payment details on the
Client’s website including a “Pay Now” or similar link
on a mutually agreed prominent place on the web site;
c) through Client’s general IVR/Phone system; and d)
other channels deemed appropriate by the Client.

Paymentus shall provide Client with logos, graphics
and other marketing materials for Client’s use in its
communications with its users regarding the Services
and/or Paymentus.

Both parties agree that Paymentus will be presented
as a payment method option. Client will communicate
Paymentus option to its end residential and
commercial Clients wherever Client usually
communicates its other payment methods.

Page 5 of 13
100205



Paymentus

5.3 Independent Contractor

Client and Paymentus agree and understand
that the relationship between both parties is that of an
independent contractor.

5.4 Client’s Responsibilities

In order for Paymentus to provide Services
outlined in this Agreement, the Client shall co-operate
with Paymentus by:

() Client will enter into all applicable merchant
Card or cash management agreements.

(ii) For the duration of this Agreement, Client will
keep a bhill payment link connecting to Paymentus
System at a prominent and mutually agreed location
on the Client website. The phone number for the IVR
payment will also be added to the web site. Client will
also add the IVR payment option as part of the
Client’s general phone system.

(i) User Adoption marketing as described in 5.2.

(iv)  Within 30 days of the merchant account setup,
Client will launch the service to the Users.

(v) For the purpose of providing Client a posting
file for posting to Client’s billing system, Client will
provide the file format specification currently used to
post its payments to the billing system. Client will fully
cooperate with Paymentus and provide the
information required to integrate with Client’s billing
system.

6 Governing Laws and Venue

This Agreement shall be governed by the
laws of the state of Palm Beach County, Florida and
any and all legal disputes shall be subject to venue
in Palm Beach County, Florida.

7 —
7.1 Authorized Representative

Each party shall designate an individual to
act as a representative for the respective party, with
the authority to transmit instructions and receive
information. The parties may from time to time
designate other individuals or change the individuals.

7.2 Notices

All notices of any type hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be given by Certified Mail or by a

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

national courier or by hand delivery to an individual

Page 6 of 13
100205



Paymentus

authorized to receive mail for the below listed
individuals, all to the following individuals at the
following locations:

To Client

C/O: City Manager

Address: City of Lake Worth
7 N. Dixie Highway

Lake Worth, FL 33460
Email:

To Paymentus

C/O: President and CEO

Address: 13024 Ballantyne Corporate Place
Suite 450

Charlotte, NC 28277

Email: ceo@paymentus.com

Notices shall be declared to have been given or
received on the date the notice is physically received
if given by hand delivery, or if notices given by US
Post, then notice shall be deemed to have been given
upon on date said notice was deposited in the

mail addressed in the manner set forth above. Any
party hereto by giving notice in the manner set forth
herein may unilaterally change the name of the
person to whom notice is to be given or the address
at which the notice is to be received.

7.3 Interpretation

It is the intent of the parties that no portion of
this Agreement shall be interpreted more harshly
against either of the parties as the drafter.

7.4 Amendment of Agreement

Modifications or changes in this Agreement
must be in writing and executed by the parties bound
to this Agreement.

7.5 Severability

If a word, sentence or paragraph herein shall
be declared illegal, unenforceable, or
unconstitutional, the said word, sentence or
paragraph shall be severed from this Agreement, and
this Agreement shall be read as if said word, sentence
or paragraph did not exist.

7.6 Attorney’s Fees
Should any litigation arise concerning this

Agreement between the parties hereto, the parties
agree to bear their own costs and attorney’s fees.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

Page 7 of 13
100205


mailto:ceo@paymentus.com

Paymentus

7.7 Confidentiality

Except as provided herein or under
applicable law, Client will not disclose to any third
party or use for any purpose inconsistent with this
Agreement any confidential or proprietary non-public
information it obtains during the term of this
Agreement about Paymentus’ business, operations,
financial condition, technology, systems, no-how,
products, services, suppliers, Clients, marketing data,
plans, and models, and personnel. Paymentus will
not disclose to any third party or use for any purpose
inconsistent with this Agreement any confidential
User information it receives in connection with its
performance of the services.

7.8 Intellectual Property

In order that the Client may promote the
Services and Paymentus’ role in providing the
Services, Paymentus grants to Client a revocable,
non-exclusive,  royalty-free, license to use
Paymentus’ logo and other service marks (the
“Paymentus Marks”) for such purpose only. Client
does not have any right, title, license or interest,
express or implied in and to any object code,
software, hardware, trademarks, service mark, trade
name, formula, system, know-how, telephone
number, telephone line, domain name, URL,
copyright image, text, script (including, without
limitation, any script used by Paymentus on the IVR
or the WebSite) or other intellectual property right of
Paymentus (“Paymentus Intellectual Property”). All
Paymentus Marks, Paymentus Intellectual Property,
and the System and all rights therein (other than
rights expressly granted herein) and goodwill pertain
thereto belong exclusively to Paymentus.

7.9 Force Majeure

Paymentus will be excused from performing
the Services as contemplated by this Agreement to
the extent its performance is delayed, impaired or
rendered impossible by acts of God or other events
that are beyond Paymentus’ reasonable control and
without its fault or judgment, including without
limitation, natural disasters, war, terrorist acts, riots,
acts of a governmental entity (in a sovereign or
contractual capacity), fire, storms, quarantine
restrictions, floods, explosions, labor strikes, labor
walk-outs, extra-ordinary losses utilities (including
telecommunications services), external computer
“hacker” attacks, and/or delays of common carrier.

7.10 Time of the Essence

Paymentus and Client acknowledge and
agree that time is of the essence for the completion of

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

the Services to be performed and each parties
respective obligations under this Agreement.

8 lemnificati

8.1 Paymentus Indemnification and Hold
Harmless

Paymentus agrees to the fullest extent
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the
Client and its governing officials, agents, employees,
and attorneys (collectively, the “Client Indemnitees”)
from and against all liabilities, demands, losses,
damages, costs or expenses (including reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs), incurred by any Client
Indemnitee as a result or arising out of (i) the willful
misconduct or negligence of Paymentus in
performing the Services or (ii) a material breach by
Paymentus of its covenants.

8.2 Client Indemnification and Hold Harmless

Subject to and without waiving Client’s right
to sovereign immunity under Florida law and subject
to the limits of the limited waiver of sovereign
immunity set forth in section 768.28, Florida Statutes,
Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law,
to indemnify and hold harmless Paymentus, its
affiliates, officers, directors, stockholders, agents,
employees, and representatives, (collectively, the
“Paymentus Indemnitees”) from and against all
liabilities, demands, losses, damages, costs or
expenses (including without limitation reasonable
attorney’'s fees and expenses) incurred by any
Paymentus Indemnitee as a result or arising out of (i)
the negligence of Client related to the Services.
Nothing herein shall be construed as the Client’s
consent to be sued by a third party or as a waiver of
the Client's right to sovereign immunity. Nothing
herein shall be interpreted to or confer any benefit on
a third party.

8.3 Warranty Disclaimer

Except as expressly set forth in this
Agreement, Paymentus disclaims all other
representations or warranties, express or implied,
made to the Client or any other person, including
without limitation, any warranties regarding quality,
suitability, merchantability, fithess, for a particular
purpose or otherwise of any services or any good
provided incidental to the Services provided under
this Agreement.

8.4 Limitation of Liability

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties

Page 8 of 13
100205



Paymentus

agree that neither party shall be liable to the other for
any lost profits, lost savings or other special, indirect
or consequential damages, even if the party has been
advised of or could have foreseen the possibility of
such damages. Paymentus’ total liability for damages
for any and all actions associated with this Agreement

or the Services shall in no event exceed the specific
dollar amount of the Paymentus Service Fee paid to
Paymentus.

9 I L
9.1 Term

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the
effective date of this Agreement and continue for a
period of 5 (five) years (“Initial Term”) from the Launch
Date. Services under this Agreement shall begin
within 30 days of the merchant account setup.

At the end of the Initial Term, this Agreement may
be renewed for successive three (3) year periods
by written agreement of the Client and Paymentus .Each
renewal term shall be subject to the termination
provision set forth herein. The Client's City Manager
may exercise any renewal term on behalf of the Client.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Paymentus were to
process any Payment beyond the Initial Term or any
subsequent, it would be deemed under a renewal term
of three (3) years.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

9.2 Material Breach

A material breach of this Agreement shall be cured
within 60 (sixty) days (“Cure Period”) after a

party notifies the other of such breach. In the event,
such material breach has not been cured within the
Cure Period, the non-breaching party can terminate
this Agreement by providing the other party with a 30
(thirty) days’ notice.

9.3 Upon Termination

Upon termination of this Agreement, the parties agree
to cooperate with one another to ensure that all
Payments are accounted for and all refundable
transactions have been completed. Upon termination,
Paymentus shall cease all Services being provided
hereunder unless otherwise directed by the Client in
writing.

10 Miscellaneous

10.1 Paymentus shall provide proof of insurance
coverage as required hereunder. Such insurance
policy(s) shall be issued by the United States
Treasury or insurance carriers approved and
authorized to do business in the State of Florida,
and who must have a rating of no less than
“excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon
by the Client and Paymentus. All such insurance
policies may not be modified or terminated without
the express written authorization of the Client.

Type of Coverage and Amount of Coverage

Commercial general liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate for products/completed
operations, contractual, insurance broad form property,
Independent Consultant, personal injury.

Worker's Compensation at the applicable statutory limits.

If any services are to be provided in-person at the Client’s
facilities, the commercial general liability will name the
Client as an additional insured on a primary and non-
contributory basis for the performance of all
work/services and completed work/services. Proof of all
insurance coverage shall be furnished to the Client by way
of an endorsement to same or certificate of insurance. The
certificates shall clearly indicate that Paymentus has
obtained insurance of the type, amount, and
classification as required for strict compliance with this
section. Failure to comply with the foregoing
requirements shall not relieve Payments of its liability
and obligations under this Agreement.

10.2 Paymentus represents and warrants that it has

Page 9 of 13
100205



Paymentus

and will continue to maintain all licenses and
approvals required to conduct its business in the
State of Florida, and that it will at all times conduct
its business activities in a reputable manner and in
conformance with all applicable laws. Proof of such
licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the
Client upon request.

10.3 As provided in Sections 287.132-133, Florida
Statutes, as amended from time to time, by entering
into this Agreement, Paymentus certifies that it, its
affiliates, suppliers, subcontractors and any other
contractors who will perform hereunder, have not
been placed on the convicted vender list maintained
by the State of Florida Department of Management
Services within the thirty-six (36) months
immediately preceding the date hereof.

10.4 In accordance with Palm Beach County
ordinance number 2011-009, this Agreement shall
be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm
Beach County Inspector General. Paymentus should
review Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-
009 in order to be aware of its rights and/or
obligations under such ordinance and as applicable.

10.5 Public Records: Paymentus shall comply with
Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes (the “Public Records Act”), and, if determined
to be acting on behalf of the Client as provided under
section 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically
agrees to:

a. Keep and maintain public records required by
the Client to perform the services.

b. Upon request from the Client’'s custodian of
public records or designee, provide the Client with a
copy of the requested records or allow the records to
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a
cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized
by law for the duration of the Contract Documents
following completion of the Contract Documents if the
Paymentus does not transfer the records to the Client.

d. Upon completion of this Agrement, transfer, at
no cost, to the Client all public records in possession
of Paymentus or keep and maintain public records
required by the Client to perform the service. If
Paymentus transfers all public records to the Client
upon completion of the Contract Documents,
Paymentus shall destroy any duplicate public records
that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
records disclosure requirements. If Paymentus keeps
and maintains public records upon completion of the
Contract Documents, Paymentus shall meet all

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

applicable requirements for retaining public records. All
records stored electronically must be provided to the
Client, upon request from the Client’s custodian of public
records or designee, in a format that is compatible with
the information technology systems of the Client.

IF PAYMENTUS HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA
STATUTES, TO THE PAYMENTUS'S DUTY TO
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, PLEASE CONTACT THE
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE
AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH, ATTN: DEBBIE
ANDREA, AT (561) 586-1662,
DANDREA@LAKEWORTH.ORG, 7 N. DIXIE
HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH, FL 33460.

10.6  Paymentus will defend or settle at its expense
a claim or suit brought by a third party against the Client
arising out of a claim asserting that the work, services,
repair, materials or other deliverables (“deliverables”
hereafter) provided by Paymentus under this Agreement
infringes any U.S. copyright or any U.S. patent or
misappropriates a trade secret. Paymentus will
indemnify and hold harmless the Client against and from
damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees, if any
and at all levels of trial and appeal or mediation or
arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount
of the settlement thereof; provided that (i) Paymentus
is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii)
Paymentus will have the sole control of the defense and
settlement thereof, and (iii) Client furnishes Paymentus,
on reasonable request, information available to Client
for such defense. The Client will not admit any such
claim without prior consent of Paymentus.

a. In the event of a claim of infringement,
Paymentus shall, at its option:

1. procure for Client the right
to continue using the deliverables
provided under this Agreement; or

2. replace or modify the
deliverables so that the same
becomes non-infringing but
substantially equivalent in
functionality and performance.

3. If neither of the above
actions is reasonably feasible,
Paymentus will refund to Client the
fee actually paid by Client under
this Agreement (as amortized on a
straight-line basis over the time in
which the Client was able to use the
deliverables.

b. Paymentus will have no obligation

Page 10 of 13
100205



Paymentus

under this section for infringement if and to the
extent that such claim arises from:

1. modification of the
deliverables other than by
Paymentus or by its

recommendation; or

2. combination of  the
deliverables with products other
than those supplied by
Paymentus;

3. the alleged infringement
or misappropriation relates to
such maodification or combination;
and/or

4, the specifications or
written direction of the Client
directs Paymentus to construct,
fabricate or otherwise provide the
infringing deliverables, design,
apparatus or, article, with
Paymentus’s products, services,
or work product.

C. Paymentus will also not have any
indemnification obligation with respect to a claim:
(i) if it has provided Client with reasonable
changes that would have avoided the problem and
the reasonable changes are not fully implemented
by Client within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out
use of the deliverables not in accordance with this
Agreement.

d. Paymentus’s obligation to
indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain
in effect and shall be binding upon Paymentus
whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may
be discovered, before or after termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

Page 11 of 13
100205



Paymentus

Schedule A — Paymentus Service Fee Schedule

Utility Payments

Paymentus Service Fee charged to the Client will be based on the following model:

Absorbed Fee Model

1. Utility Payments
Absorbed Model

Average Bill Amount: $189.00
Paymentus Service Fee per qualified utility rate transaction

e Credit/Debit Card $1.68
e ACH/ eCheck $0.45

Paymentus Service Fee per non-qualified payments
e AMEX & Non-Qualified Card 2.65%
2. Non Utility Payments
Paymentus Service Fee per transaction

e Credit/Debit Card 2.75%
e ACH/ eCheck $0.65

Note: Maximum Amount per Payment is $1,500.00. Multiple payments can be made.
Chargebacks and returned checks will be billed at $9.95 per item
Paymentus may apply different limits per transactions for user adoption or to mitigate risks.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed Page 12 of 13
Confidential & Proprietary 100205



Paymentus

Schedule B: Paymentus Service Fee Schedule, Enterprise Communications Manager
(Optional)

Paymentus Enterprise Communications Manager consists of Paymentus’ pre-recorded, digitally rendered messages for
payments reminders and service outage alerts. Automated messages can be sent to your customers through the Paymentus

platform by automated phone and SMS (Short Message Service - Text Messaging). There is no charge to the Customer for

the infrastructure enabling these services.

ECM FEE STRUCTURE

For Paymentus standard campaign messages

Up to 3,500 Messages Per Month No Charge
In Excess of Allotted Messages per Month
$0.10 per IVR and SMS message

$0.05 per Email message

Page 13 of 13

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
100205

Confidential & Proprietary



Paymentus

Schedule C: Paymentus Provisioning of Counter Payment Hardware (Optional)

(Works with Superion Cash Receipts or with Paymentus Agent Dashboard for
USB-attached encrypted card readers, factory- loaded with Paymentus firmware)

CARD SWIPE DEVICES

SecureMag™ Encrypted Card Swipe Device*

e QTY:Upto8 $0.00 ea.
e Additional Devices: $225.00 ea.
e Setup & Configuration Devices will arrive at client site pre-configured and
“ready for use”
e Shipping & Handling Fee Waived
[ ]
Master Services Agreement — Absorbed Page 14 of 13

Confidential & Proprietary 100205



Paymentus

Schedule D: Paymentus E-Bill Presentment (Optional)

Paymentus Service Fee charged to the Customer will be based on one of the following table:

Service Type

Paymentus Service Fee

1. PDF E-Bill Design and development

2. Hosting Fee

$5,000 Fee Waived

$600 per month ~ Fee Waived

Notes:

1. Paymentus will offer Electronic Bill Presentment and Payment (EBPP) to users through the Paymentus
Customer Dashboard web portal, to be provided to the customer.

2. Paymentus will invoice monthly for the hosting fee (waived).

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed
Confidential & Proprietary

Page 15 of 13
100205



Schedule E: PayNearMe Integrated Services (Optional)

Remote location PayNearMe payments integrated with Paymentus processing

Paymentus

PayNearMe-Paymentus Integrated Solution

Biller Pay Fee Model

[ Remote Location Payment Fee $1.99 ea.

[] PrePay

$1.49 ea.

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed

Confidential & Proprietary

Page 16 of 13
100205



Paymentus

Schedule F: Paymentus Provisioning of Additional Software from Superion (Optional)

Superion Web Enablement Software

For Real Time Integration with Paymentus Channels

[ Web Enablement (one-time purchase) $3,250.00
Client to purchase and to be reimbursed
by Paymentus

[ Annual Maintenance $520.00
Purchasable by Client

Master Services Agreement — Absorbed

Page 17 of 13
Confidential & Proprietary

100205



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
ELECTRIC UTILITY MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 30, 2021

TITLE:

Establishing new Electric Utility Rates and Charges to be Effective on either January 1, 2022 or
April 1, 2022

SUMMARY:

Proposed electric utility rate increases for all customer categories to reflect increases in operating
costs, base energy costs, fuel, and purchased power costs.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

Since 2014, City’s electric utility reduced electric rates three times under the direction of the City
Commission to achieve rate parity with the neighboring investor owned utility for the benchmark
1,000 kWhr/month customer. The last of the three electric rate decreases was implemented in
February, 2018, with rates remaining unchanged since then. Today the City’s electric utility’s
residential bills rank among the lowest in the state of Florida, most recent public data ranks our
electric utility 8th out of 32 municipal utilities, and well below the statewide municipal utility
average, and with actual bills for a benchmark 1,000 kWhr/month customer ~0.5% lower than the
neighboring utility.

The electric utility has been able to operate without rate increases for three and a half years due
to significant cost cutting efforts by Staff. These include implementing operating cost controls,
renegotiated energy and capacity contracts, and refinancing of outstanding debt. Over the past
four years the electric utility has also identified and brought in additional revenues from
renegotiated pole attachment agreements and settlements for prior unauthorized attachments,
customer growth, as well as bringing in new revenues from underutilized natural gas pipeline
capacity assets. The electric utility’s improved financial position has allowed it to embark on a
robust series of projects aimed at improving reliability for its customers, referred to as System
Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program (SHRIP).

In 2020, the City contracted with Leidos, a leading rates-consulting firm, to conduct a
comprehensive Cost of Service Study and recommend adjustments to electric utility rates, where
deemed advisable, to assure adequacy of revenues to cover increased costs going forward. The
electric utility is currently operating under Resolution 69-2021 which continued previously set
Electric Utility Rates and Charges for FY2022 without changes from FY2021 amounts.

On September 28, 2021, following budget workshops and detailed financial modeling by Stantec,
the Electric Utility department Staff and Leidos’ Staff presented the findings of the Cost of Service
Study and suggested rate changes to the City Commission for discussion and questions. The City
Commission informally agreed with the suggested rates by consensus, with an accompanying
request that the rates proposal be brought forward for formal approval at the October 26, 2021
City Commission meeting with an effective date of April 1, 2022.

Resolution 74-2021 was submitted for consideration at the City Commission meeting on October
26, 2021 with proposed new Electric Utility Rates and Charges effective April 1, 2022, as



previously requested. At the October 26, 2021 meeting the City Commission requested that the
matter be deferred to the November 30, 2021 meeting. In recognition of significantly increased
natural gas prices beyond what was anticipated during the FY2022 budget process, Staff has
reviewed the suggested rate increases yet again. Staff currently anticipates that increased natural
gas prices will lead to wholesale power costs ~$2.3 million higher than budget.

Natural gas is the fuel source for approximately 53% of electric utility’s wholesale energy
purchases, and while not the majority of the utility’s fuel source for electric generation, the utility’s
cost of wholesale power does track with natural gas prices. The balance of the utility’s energy
supply portfolio is nuclear (38%), coal (8%) and solar (0.75%). The actual percentages are
approximate and vary slightly year to year depending on generating unit dispatch costs and
outages.

Beginning in late 2023, into 2024 and beyond, the electric utility’s supply portfolio will change for
the better with the addition of significant amounts of solar energy derived from existing purchase
agreements with the Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) Solar Projects for 36.55 Megawatts
(MW). City’s contract with FMPA for solar energy, combined with the planned retirement of the
utility’s source of coal energy, and the displacement of supplemental energy from natural gas
sources, will yield significant reductions in CO2 emissions associated with the production of
electricity to serve City’s electric utility customers. A concomitant benefit of City’s contract with
FMPA for solar energy is a further reduction in City’s exposure to fluctuations in natural gas prices,
in essence a hedge against rising fuel prices.

At this time however, and in order to keep up with increases in operating costs, base energy costs,
fuel, and purchased power costs Staff has proposed various alternatives for rate increases. In
order to minimize the impact of rising fuel costs Staff has structured four potential options for
consideration which spread the fuel cost recovery period over an eighteen to twenty-one-month
period, using either Jan. 1, 2022 or April 1, 2022 as the effective date. Staff’s proposals are also
designed to yield residential customer bills for the benchmark 1,000 kWhr/month residential
customer that will remain below that of the local investor owned utility.

Staff is also proposing increases to streetlighting charges of 5.0% to 6.9% due to changed costs
such as debt service and lower bulb wattages associated with the replacement of the City’s
streetlights to more energy efficient LED lighting in 2017. These changes were not previously
reflected in rates.

There are four rate options for new Electric Utility Rates and Charges from which the Commission
would select and approve one. The cases are summarized below at a high level, but are provided
in detail in the backup material from Leidos, with Effective dates of January 1, 2022 or April 1,

2022
Residentiall
Residential ICommercial | {1,000 KWHh
Case 1 - COS Apr 1, 2022 8.0% 5.0% $116.65
Case 2 - Even Apr 1, 2022 6.9% 6.9% $115.65
Case 3 - COS Jan 1, 2022 7.0% 4.0% $115.45
Case 4 - Even Jan 1, 2022 6.0% 6.0% $114.45

The existing Residential rate is $107.99. The proposed Neighboring Utility rate will be $119.37
in January 2022.



Staff will continue to monitor natural gas prices and purchased power costs monthly, and will
advise the City Commission of the budget status regularly for it to determine what further
adjustments (up or down) may be needed in its Power Cost Adjustment (PCA).

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove a request that Staff bring forward an Electric Utility Rates Resolution
based on one of the four options (Case 1, Case 2, Case 3, or Case 4) establishing the new Electric
Utility rates and charges, for a vote at the December 7, 2021 City Commission meeting.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis - N/A

Davenport Ratings Presentation

Leidos Rates Presentation

Leidos Cost of Service Study (will be uploaded when finalized)
Existing Electric Utility Rates Resolution 69-2021

Proposed Rate Resolution



DAVENPORT

. ..... .
PUBLIC FINANCE <

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida

Ratings Discussion
c;ty Uf
(o Lake Worth
~\_ =, Beach

NS E/JZFLOR.W

November 18, 2021

Member NYSE | FINRA|SIPC



Credit Ratings

(tyof
Lake Worth
| Beach
\ %FLOPDA‘

DAVENPORT

To issue debt in the public market, an issuer needs to obtain a
credit rating from at least one of the three national credit
rating agencies - Fitch Ratings (“Fitch), Moody’s Investors
Service (“Moody’s), and S&P Global (“S&P).

and ability to pay its debt on time and in full.

the risk that a default will occur.

Standard &
. ] o Moody's Poor's Fitch
A credit rating measures a local government’s willingness Top Tier
"Highest
. Aaa AAA AAA
. . . o Possible
— The rating is a measure of risk that potential investors Rating"
use to decide whether or nqt to purchage a Aal A+ A+ (Highest)
government’s bonds. The higher the rating, the lower ond Tler
. . Aa2 AA AA (Middle)
Very Strong
Aa3 AA- AA- (Lowest)
The chart to the right provides an overview of the rating Al A+ A+ (Highest)
scales (investment grade only) from all three national rating 3rd Tier A2 A A Middle)
agencies, with Aaa/AAA being the highest possible rating. "Strong’
A3 A- A- (Lowest)
. ; Baal BBB+ BBB+ Highest
The City of Lake Worth Beach currently has a general 4th Tier o (Highest)
o : na , A "Adequat
obligation rating of ‘A1’ from Moody’s and ‘AA-" from S&P. Cap(::?t?/ o Baa2 BBB BBB (Middle)
Repay" Baa3 BBB- BBB- (Lowest)
Non Investment Grade
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 1

PUBLIC FINANCE '« November 18, 2021



FLORIDA™

(tyof
. Lake Worth
Importance of Ratings @Bm

» Formal credit ratings have multiple benefits to issuers including, but not limited to:

— Playing a primary role in determining what interest rate and terms the City achieves for any
borrowings or refinancings, with a higher credit rating resulting in lower interest rates;

— Acting as a signal to business community about governance, management, and financial health of
the City, which can help drive economic development opportunities; and

DAVENPORT

PUBLIC FINANCE '« November 18, 2021 City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 2



Credit Rating Process

- City contacts
Rating Agencies
regarding upcoming
sale

- Rating Agencies
assign analysts to
sale

DAVENPORT

jeseany
PUBLIC FINANCE s

- City provides
information to rating
analysts (ie — Audit,
POS, Refunding
Analysis, Rating
Presentation, etc.).

- Rating analysts
review information
prior to scheduled
call/visit; Some
analysts will send
list of questions
beforehand.

- Rating call or visit
occurs potentially
resulting in a hist of
follow-ups for the
City.

- Once all responses
have been provided
to the rating
agencies, analysts
schedule committee
and prepare
documents.

- Rating commitiees
consist of a number
of individuals with
varying titles and
backgrounds.

- Rating analysis
present information
provided by the City
to committee.
Discussion about
the credit and how it
compares to peers
ensues.

- After presentation
has concluded,
committee votes on
the rating

Cv'fj’ of
Lake Worth
W\ Bexch

.

- Rating analyst
contacts City with
rating and releases
draft report for
review.

- Analyst
incorporates
comments and
release final rating
and report.

November 18, 2021

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 3



Ctyof
\ | Lake Worth
N\ Beach

\

%FLORDA

Approach to Credit Ratings

®m Qver the last few years, all three rating agencies have updated their rating methodologies.

® Moody’s and S&P have focused on being more transparent in their ratings and established rating scorecards that are used
to help determine a rating.

® Fitch’s new criteria does not include a scorecard, but its primary focus is on budgetary flexibility.

Fuhllc Finance

U P T

E@hﬁatingﬁ

L5, Tax-Suppaortad Rating Critaria

Crileria | Covernmenta | U5, Public Finance:

105, Loeal Governments General Obligation Mot Criaria
Ratings: Methodology And Assumptions [T —
| Seancard b Foort ANTER WNEOE TGRS 1N T 7 wrrTpIn o et g - g e Fiin. rmpet mstia S s S spdy o g o s g by e il
. - iz P [ By o i s TR g oy o g e g P
patme mernoootocy LS Local Governiment General Obllga‘tlm I,mmﬁﬂmm;“;ww::mﬂwmﬂ:‘mui mc“:::‘;"::“ ug-llﬂnﬂ:-n v, Tesks T ul B e sy, B :—u—nn——l- [a—
Dbt o A pulid v a8 512 The ] ™ - lIIw‘.l.l......_‘fMI.‘“"- ?_,_,,._. 1 Ll
e e e T g by

Thia murhadodagy crplirs bew Shandy’s reisrms e cardn guabey of 1% ool gerarrmnes:
Bnu.lnuua—mm T.udhuiu. a u.nmui unnmu;uu.: s

L The e of e o b b b b s e
I-qg-wm-l-- adlr-ﬂ--do.l-l-drr-m-wu\-l The mwesaid
il ot Lhai [y,

bk st partsorants beller rslmsas) o o s g kel gveswor rein, |2 cihasis e
formard ienbiy mafew o Uy, aod i malie i cawic bevewn S kead prre e sk ool
FONSERET, TP e po e, Sl oy pumgs, The “Trmrpien of Credt Rarmr®, pubkaied o ek, %,
B Ly de bk o (hin vl

WA R e S ekl pa e caib R e o ke G R e RS B e st e ches
AR, g, N, SR B S FS AT 18 B o e FRapepi S se e
Safrert rris S P T $00Pe ISl oSS! Saterty, Bhrary Atrets park CIrvictn an g Janent prasarve Sinicts

EFTEMER i3 3803 1

Wi s e v
Foohinimimm iy

Thin prmna ruoen warefas reing e samsiens by Fay sk sragang renge w 6
L L T L Ty pe—r—r—
gy - g ey s, Gam wmsts g smes
TRy & N (] AN RN TN TSR BN AT [ B RN R
b

iy - e e s o T 65, e Lt 1 T i Pt T
S e T o P S W —— e e el e e e W
[T r— T T X . - 'z sl
B irkopieermbveny et veger ey e * RE7 ST MATENS) RS OETE KRS - TS VS WS A0 2 TR e o s
o [oermiagyie this sroms a Tieora Mg b W P gl The bmguct O S O Mricpd Sving, dped 25 2000 i L A
& Lscaticn, Location, Lo 'What Dios i Bless Po bty Comsrand 'y Rasog? dord 12, 1508 - "‘-'L ' - RN TELDY ALl L TN 5 D T el T
& v :
T e e e L .F"I"_l,"‘; e "LI:‘"‘ e 1 M1 cimBard s e e 3 for glemeny w4, parmgrrn $40 fralets B T
u.,,.,,w_,,,“““.,w._mﬂd“u“Mh,m,ﬂ;m .,."""Hm i L L T T T ———
po [y sysiety [l T——— ~<h [P, e - ———
i s kbl el thed prrasaly = u
T el b it wars, A mke ww bt ol s b wafoind b g 4 ik L. SCOPE OF THE CRITERIA e ; Dy e ey e 4 T S e o ey e e o e T ]
o th prabication of ths mctackiion. ] SR W T BV T g O nwnqm"qmw [rer—
- ¢ The! CRTS OIP 10 62 LG 1300 JOVPITSTT LI STV | CRET N AN LS PRSI G, I L O FTRCT B 0 ]

mnmm-um\q—-uun

e Lot il s Bl

[S—
e S, e ey e e g b e P

n _pl‘_nﬂ-_llm_mmdlmlth-—-dﬁ
= a—rey fe—— TN WS The EFLTA S50 48 B B 18 L% S OF (SR Bl 06 BTIF 1T (NS B TAARELE T o i fo
i o iopliotos i ket e A oy S T
B B H Py S I —, et ¥
e IL SURIMARY OF CRITERLA UPDATE Pl - N
re s pat Flaiey Thawa B Cruie
The it o Lo B . i e s e e s el sl gl et s e e 1L e e et i e et .o Asng
The ikt s wrabytical apsach e miekinellia o st b ot which Fie Bt Loeal Ceermmrnnt noihed S 2030101 Specfmi e ] i s i P s e el B b
e pull i At 11 L W e ko, o ary i e e s lorts i bkl i st i o i P - Tha iy i e
* I b o sk Mietings. lrst Piiges Psirgs e vsgred o v pymsis e o o gl
= Frmwawy I craeen - v
= MmagsTer e g o e e (T
+ Bt wprertie, hy ]
» Busst rypetemros Lo -
et
+130 maaen
-

LR 1

DAVENPORT E&

PUBLIC FINANCE -

November 18, 2021 City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida

4



(tyof
Lake Worth

Moody’s General Obligation Bond Methodology \Z?gggg

® Moody’s “US Local Government General Obligation Debt” methodology was last updated in September 2019 and focuses on
the local government General Obligation security backed by either and unlimited or limited ad valorem taxing authority. The
methodology and accompanying scorecard, outline four broad rating factors and their respective weights:

— Economy/Tax Base (30%);
— Finances (30%);

— Management (20%); and
— Debt (20%).

® These broad rating factors are then broken down into sub-factors, which hold their own respective weights.

Broad Rating Factors Factor Weighting Rating Subfactors Subfactor Weighting
Economy/Tax Base 30% Tax Base Size (Full Value) 10% o

Full Value Per Capita 10%

Wealth (Median Family Income) 10%
Finances 30% Fund Balance (% of Revenues) 10%

Fund Balance Trend (5-Year Change) 5%

Cash Balance (% of Revenues) 10%

Cash Balance Trend (5-Year Change) 5%
Management 20% Institutional Framework 10%

Operating History 10%
Debt/Pensions 20% Debt to Full Value 5%

Debt to Revenue 5%

Moody's Adjusted Net Pension 50

Liability (3-Year Average) to Full Value

Moody's Adjusted Net Pension 59

Liability (3-Year Average) to Revenue

DAVENPORT

PUBLIC FINANCE '« November 18, 2021 City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida

5



FLORIDA™

(tyof
o o . . Lake Worth
Municipal Advisor Disclosure @Beach

The enclosed information relates to an existing or potential municipal advisor engagement.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has clarified that a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer engaging in municipal advisory activities outside the scope of underwriting
a particular issuance of municipal securities should be subject to municipal advisor registration. Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) has registered as a municipal advisor with the SEC. As a
registered municipal advisor Davenport may provide advice to a municipal entity or obligated person. An obligated person is an entity other than a municipal entity, such as a not for profit
corporation, that has commenced an application or negotiation with an entity to issue municipal securities on its behalf and for which it will provide support. If and when an issuer engages
Davenport to provide financial advisory or consultant services with respect to the issuance of municipal securities, Davenport is obligated to evidence such a financial advisory relationship with a
written agreement.

When acting as a registered municipal advisor Davenport is a fiduciary required by federal law to act in the best interest of a municipal entity without regard to its own financial or other interests.
Davenport is not a fiduciary when it acts as a registered investment advisor, when advising an obligated person, or when acting as an underwriter, though it is required to deal fairly with such
persons,

This material was prepared by public finance, or other non-research personnel of Davenport. This material was not produced by a research analyst, although it may refer to a Davenport research
analyst or research report. Unless otherwise indicated, these views (if any) are the author’s and may differ from those of the Davenport fixed income or research department or others in the firm.
Davenport may perform or seek to perform financial advisory services for the issuers of the securities and instruments mentioned herein.

This material has been prepared for information purposes only and is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security/instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Any such offer
would be made only after a prospective participant had completed its own independent investigation of the securities, instruments or transactions and received all information it required to make its
own investment decision, including, where applicable, a review of any offering circular or memorandum describing such security or instrument. That information would contain material information
not contained herein and to which prospective participants are referred. This material is based on public information as of the specified date, and may be stale thereafter. We have no obligation to
tell you when information herein may change. We make no representation or warranty with respect to the completeness of this material. Da